

structures at the appraised value thereof less the value that any improvements thereon added to the value of the land itself at the time of the sale thereof.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. The purchases authorized under section 2 of this 1971 amendatory act shall be classified as for the construction of common school plant facilities under chapter 28A.47 RCW and shall be payable out of the common school construction fund as otherwise provided for in RCW 28A.40.100 if the school district involved was under emergency school construction classification as established by the state board of education at any time during the period of its lease of state lands.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 4. In those cases where the purchases, as authorized by sections 2 or 3 of this 1971 amendatory act, have been made on a ten year contract, the board of natural resources, if it deems it in the best interest of the state, may extend the term of any such contract to not to exceed an additional ten years under such terms and conditions as the board may determine.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 5. There is added to chapter 79.01 RCW a new section to read as follows:

Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, annually the board of natural resources shall determine if lands purchased or leased by school districts or institutions of higher education under the provisions of sections 1 and 2 of this 1971 amendatory act are being used for school sites. If such land has not been used for school sites for a period of seven years the title to such land shall revert to the original trust for which it was held.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 6. If any provision of this 1971 amendatory act, or its application to any person or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the act, or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

Passed the House May 10, 1971.

Passed the Senate May 10, 1971.

Approved by the Governor May 21, 1971.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 21, 1971.

---

CHAPTER 201

[Engrossed House Bill No. 411]

WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY--

FEEES

AN ACT Relating to fees payable to the Washington state board of pharmacy; amending section 10, chapter 121, Laws of 1899 as last amended by section 2, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW

18.64.040; amending section 12, chapter 213, Laws of 1909 as last amended by section 3, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.043; amending section 5, chapter 153, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 4, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.045; amending section 16, chapter 121, Laws of 1899 as last amended by section 5, chapter 38, Laws of 1963 and RCW 18.64.047; amending section 3, chapter 180, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 7, chapter 38, Laws of 1963 and RCW 18.64.080; amending section 11, chapter 121, Laws of 1899 as last amended by section 9, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.140; amending section 4, chapter 192, Laws of 1939 and RCW 18.81.040; increasing penalties; and declaring an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:

Section 1. Section 10, chapter 121, Laws of 1899 as last amended by section 2, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Every applicant for registration by examination under this chapter shall pay the sum of ~~((ten))~~ twenty dollars before the examination be attempted: PROVIDED, That in case the applicant fails to pass a satisfactory examination he shall have the privilege of a second examination without any charge any time within one year. Every shopkeeper not a pharmacist, desiring to secure the benefits and privileges of this chapter, is hereby required to secure a shopkeeper's license, and he or she shall pay the sum of ~~((ten))~~ fifteen dollars for the same, and annually thereafter the sum of ~~((ten))~~ fifteen dollars for renewal of the same; and shall at all times keep said license or the current renewal thereof conspicuously exposed in the shop to which it applies. In event such shopkeeper's license fee remains unpaid for ninety days from date due, no renewal or new license shall be issued except upon payment of an additional ~~((ten))~~ fifteen dollars.

Sec. 2. Section 12, chapter 213, Laws of 1909 as last amended by section 3, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.043 are each amended to read as follows:

The owner of each and every drug store, pharmacy or dispensary, shall pay an original license fee of ~~((twenty-five))~~ fifty dollars, and annually thereafter, on or before the first day of June, a fee of ten dollars, for which he shall receive a license and registration of location, which shall entitle the owner to operate such drug store, pharmacy or dispensary at the location specified for the year ending on the next succeeding May 31st, and each such owner shall at the time of filing proof of payment of such fee as hereinafter provided, file with the state board of pharmacy on a blank therefor provided, a declaration of ownership and location,

which declaration of ownership and location so filed as aforesaid shall be deemed presumptive evidence of ownership of the pharmacy, drug store, or dispensary mentioned therein. It shall be the duty of the owner to immediately notify the board of any change of location and ownership and to keep the license and registration of location or the renewal thereof properly exhibited in said drug store, pharmacy or dispensary. Failure to conform with this provision shall be deemed a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof the owner shall be fined not less than ~~((ten))~~ twenty dollars nor more than ~~((fifty))~~ one hundred dollars; and each day that said failure continues shall be deemed a separate offense. In event such license fee remains unpaid for ninety days from date due, no renewal or new license shall be issued except upon payment of an additional ~~((ten))~~ twenty dollars.

Sec. 3. Section 5, chapter 153, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 4, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.045 are each amended to read as follows:

Within thirty days after this section takes effect the owner of each and every place of business which manufactures or sells drugs or drug sundries at wholesale shall pay a license fee of ~~((fifty))~~ seventy-five dollars, and annually thereafter, on or before the first day of June, a like fee of ~~((fifty))~~ seventy-five dollars, for which he shall receive a license and registration of location from the state board of pharmacy, which shall entitle such owner to manufacture or to sell drugs and drug sundries at the location specified for the year ending on the next succeeding May 31st, and each such owner shall at the time of payment of such fee file with the state board of pharmacy, on a blank therefor provided, a declaration of ownership and location, which declaration of ownership and location so files as aforesaid shall be deemed presumptive evidence of the ownership of such place of business mentioned therein. It shall be the duty of the owner to notify immediately the board of any change of location and ownership and to keep the license and registration of location or the renewal thereof properly exhibited in such place of business. Failure to conform with this provision shall be deemed a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof, the owner shall be fined not less than ~~((ten))~~ twenty dollars nor more than ~~((fifty))~~ one-hundred dollars; and each day that said failure continues shall be deemed a separate offense. In event such license fee remains unpaid for ninety days from date due, no renewal or new license shall be issued except upon payment of an additional ~~((fifty))~~ seventy-five dollars.

Sec. 4. Section 16, chapter 121, Laws of 1899 as last amended by section 5, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.047 are each amended to read as follows:

Any itinerant vendor, shopkeeper, or any peddler of any medicine, drug, or nostrum, or preparation for the treatment of disease or injury, shall pay a license fee of (~~ten~~) fifteen dollars annually on or before the first day of June. The state board of pharmacy shall issue a license to such itinerant vendor or peddler on application made to the state board of pharmacy, such license to be signed by the president and attested by the secretary with the seal of the board. Any such itinerant vendor or peddler who shall vend or sell, or offer to sell any such medicine, drug, or nostrum, or preparation without having a license to do so as herein provided, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in any sum not less than twenty dollars and not exceeding (~~fifty~~) one hundred dollars, for such offense, and each sale or offer to sell shall constitute a separate offense. In event such license fee remains unpaid for ninety days from date due, no renewal or new license shall be issued except upon payment of an additional (~~ten~~) fifteen dollars.

Sec. 5. Section 3, chapter 180, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 7, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.080 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The state board of pharmacy may license as a pharmacist any person who has filed an application therefor, subscribed by the person under oath or affirmation, containing such information as the board may by regulation require, and who--

(a) Is not less than twenty-one years of age and a citizen of the United States;

(b) Has satisfied the board that he is of good moral and professional character, that he will probably carry out the duties and responsibilities required of a pharmacist, and that he is not unfit or unable to practice pharmacy by reason of the extent or manner of his use of alcoholic beverages, narcotic drugs or dangerous drugs or by reason of a physical or mental disability;

(c) Holds a degree in pharmacy granted by a school or college of pharmacy which is accredited by the board of pharmacy;

(d) Has completed the internship requirements as prescribed;

(e) Has satisfactorily passed such examinations given by the board.

(2) The state board of pharmacy shall, at least once in every twelve months, examine in the practice of pharmacy all pharmacy interns, who have completed their educational requirements, who shall make applications for said examination pursuant to regulations promulgated by the board. The said examination shall consist of two parts: The first part being a theoretical examination, and the second part consisting of a practical examination which shall be given to all pharmacy interns who have successfully passed the

theoretical examination and have satisfactorily completed their internship requirements. In case of failure at a first examination, the applicant shall have within three years the privilege of a second and third examination. In case of failure in a third examination, the applicant shall not be eligible for further examination until he has satisfactorily completed additional preparation as directed and approved by the board.

(3) To insure proficiency in the practical aspects of pharmacy, the board shall, by regulation, prescribe internship requirements which must be satisfactorily completed prior to issuance of a pharmacist license. The board shall specify the period of time of not less than six months nor more than one year and when and in what manner the internship shall be served.

(4) The board may, by regulation, accept in lieu of the experience as a registered pharmacy intern as herein required other equivalent experience obtained prior to January 1, 1964.

(5) Any person enrolled as a student of pharmacy in an accredited college may file with the state board of pharmacy an application for registration as a pharmacy intern in which said application he shall be required to furnish such information as the board may, by regulation, prescribe and, simultaneously with the filing of said application, shall pay to the board a fee of one dollar. All certificates issued to pharmacy interns shall be valid for a period not exceeding six years from the date of issue exclusive of time spent in the military service.

(6) To assure adequate practical instruction, pharmacy internship experience as required under this chapter shall be obtained after registration as a pharmacy intern by employment in any licensed pharmacy meeting the requirements promulgated by regulation of the board, and shall include such instruction in the practice of pharmacy as the board by regulation shall prescribe.

(7) The board may, without examination other than one in the laws relating to the practice of pharmacy, license as a pharmacist any person who, at the time of filing application therefor, is and, for at least one year next preceding, has been licensed as a pharmacist in any other state, territory or possession of the United States: PROVIDED, That the said person shall produce evidence satisfactory to the board of having had the required secondary and professional education and training and is possessed of good character and morals, who have become registered as pharmacists by examination in other states prior to the time this amendatory act takes effect shall be required to satisfy only the requirements which existed in this state at the time they became licensed in such other states: PROVIDED FURTHER, That the state in which said person is licensed shall under similar conditions grant reciprocal registration

as pharmacist without examination to pharmacists duly licensed by examination in this state. Every application under this subsection shall be accompanied by a fee of (~~fifty~~) seventy-five dollars.

(8) Each pharmacy intern applying for examination shall pay to the state board of pharmacy an examination fee of (~~ten~~) twenty dollars. Upon passing the required examinations and complying with all the rules and regulations of the board and the provisions of this chapter, the board shall grant the applicant registration as a pharmacist and issue to him a certificate qualifying him to enter into the practice of pharmacy.

(9) The board shall provide for, regulate and require all persons registered as pharmacists to renew their registration (~~biennially~~) annually, and shall prescribe the form of such registration and information required to be submitted by all applicants.

Sec. 6. Section 11, chapter 121, Laws of 1899 as last amended by section 9, chapter 38, Laws of 1963, and RCW 18.64.140 are each amended to read as follows:

Every registered pharmacist who desires to (~~continue the~~) practice (~~of~~) his profession shall secure from the board a (~~renewal~~) registration license, the fee for which shall be twenty dollars (~~; with registered pharmacists whose last name begins with the initial A through E paying ten dollars on or before June 1, 1963, and twenty dollars on or before June 1, 1964, and biennially thereafter; with registered pharmacists whose last name begins with the initial M through S paying twenty dollars on or before June 1, 1963, and biennially thereafter; and pharmacists registered after June 1, 1963, will pay ten dollars if the license will expire within one year, and twenty dollars biennially thereafter~~) and the annual renewal fee shall be fifteen dollars payable on or before June 1st of each year. Pharmacists shall pay an additional twenty dollars for the late renewal of their license. Every certificate of registration or the current renewal thereof shall be conspicuously exposed in the drug store, pharmacy or dispensary to which it applies: PROVIDED, That commencing with the license year starting June 1, 1971, all pharmacists shall pay the fees provided for in this section irrespective of when the pharmacist licenses previously issued expire, however those which would have expired after June 1, 1971, shall receive a credit in the amount of the fee previously paid times the ratio of the expressed remaining license period to the total license period.

Sec. 7. Section 4, chapter 192, Laws of 1939 and RCW 18.81.040 are each amended to read as follows:

The fee for a wholesale dealer's license shall be (~~twenty-five~~) fifty dollars and for a retail dealer's license shall

be ((one)) ten dollars. A separate license shall be required for each store, warehouse, establishment or place of business from which sales are made. All licenses shall expire on the thirty-first day of May next following the date of issue, and shall be renewed and expire annually as in the case of the original license. The board shall issue the license required upon application and exhibition of a duplicate receipt showing payment to the state treasurer of the prescribed fee.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 8. This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, the support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and shall take effect immediately.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 9. If any provision of this act, or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act, or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

Passed the House May 10, 1971.

Passed the Senate May 10, 1971.

Approved by the Governor May 21, 1971.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 21, 1971.

---

CHAPTER 202

[Engrossed House Bill No. 372]

ELECTIONS--

REGISTRATION OF VOTERS.

AN ACT Relating to elections; amending section 29.04.020, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 as amended by section 1, chapter 123, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.04.020; amending section 29.04.080, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.04.080; amending section 6, chapter 156, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 29.04.100; amending section 29.07.010, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.010; amending section 29.07.020, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.020; amending section 29.07.040, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.040; amending section 29.07.050, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.050; amending section 29.07.060, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.060; amending section 29.07.070, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.070; amending section 29.07.080, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.080; amending section 29.07.090, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.090; amending section 29.07.095, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.095; amending section 29.07.100, chapter 9, Laws of 1965 and RCW 29.07.100; amending section 29.07.105, chapter 9, Laws